MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST NR Eligible: yes ___

DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY FORM no___

Property Name:  Ebenezer United Methodist Church Inventory Number:  CARR-579
Address: 4911 Woodbine Road City: Sykesville Zip Code: 21784
County: Carroll USGS Topographic Map: Carroll Co., Winfield Quadrangle
Owner: Ebenezer United Methodist Church Is the property being evaluated a district? NO
Tax Parcel Number: Tax Map Number: Tax Account ID Number:
Project:  Barnes Property Agency: Federal Communications Commission
Site visit by MHT Staff. X  no yes Name: Date:
Is the property located within a historic district? _ yes X no

If the property is within a district District Inventory Number:

NR-listed district ___yes  Eligible district _____yes District Name:

Preparer’s Recommendation:  Contributing resource_yes  no Non-contributing but eligible in another context

If the property is not within a district (or the property is a district)

Preparer’s Recommendation: Eligible X yes no

Criteria: A B x C D Considerations: X A B C D E F G None

Documentation on the property/district is presented in: Maryland Historical Trust State Historic Sites Inventory Form dated June
18, 1993.

Description of Property and Eligibility Determination: (Use continuation sheet if necessary and attach map and photo)

Ebenezer United Methodist Church (historically, Ebenezer Methodist Episcopal
Church) was most recently observed and photographed on January 28, 2003. Its
condition was unchanged since the preparation of the State Historic Sites
Inventory Form in the library of the Maryland Historical Trust.

The property is described in the Maryland Historical Trust State Historic Sites
Inventory Form, prepared by Kenneth M. Short, Historic Planner for the Carroll
County Planning Department, on June 18, 1993. Following is a brief statement of
observations made during a visit to the property on January 28, 2003.

The church and grounds are well-maintained. The church is in use presently as
the seat of the Ebenezer United Methodist congregation. As earlier described in

the State Historic Sites Inventory Form completed June 18, 1993, the property
retains its character as a property of local historical significance. The
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MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST
NR-ELIBILITY REVIEW FORM

Continuation Sheet No. 1

CACR-519

property is not identified with an event, personage, or archaeclogical
significance (Criteria A, B, and D, respectively). However, the property
continues to meet the standards of Evaluation Criterion C: Design/Construction,
and of Criteria Consideration a: Religious Properties - “..a religious property
deriving primary significance from architectural or artistic distinction or

historical importance....” Current photographs are attached in support of these
findings.

William C. Riggs, RA
Prepared by: Historic Architect Date Prepared: 01.28.03

\\\ t"ol gl\\{f') iu) pdﬁ//\ (A{Q -\l gL@



WGSB4 77°02'00" W

77°03'00" W

77°04'00" W

77°05'00" W

t
<]
B
E 2
N .00,£Z06E N 00,92 06E N ,00,5206€ m b
7 * 7 < - T T > M o~
; 2 Q
$g =
a2 «
A...m. A
=
£ a,mM
2 N 2 od
s 0.8 g
2 50 ¢
O.W [o%
2 Ch @
5 z <
o = N LY
N © ~ =
2 gn ©
R mm
it =5
: <
g 1 O
)
mm
5 g
1 cH
m "
2y (2 -
S A E :
AN E v
4% m °
z .
=8 <
ER
B 2 v
(=}
=]
o~
o 8
o8
! &
x  f
=3
1 8]
<
g
R [0}
g
SEE
S 2
[+]
ric
=0 v
NDA
- IM.~
z O2m
3 > 94
182 ==AS)
| & = =77
PN e <, ? ~ o g
y . N e R . IR T ZES
N .00.£206€ N .00.52o6€

el
o=







Pt R /i S MIRE® CAER T
T WERIB I B &2, = Tl A = By /
HATY V)r WILAAM [£444% J A=

IEZ 7 st
3o & -

EATIN, LN, TV SR 24, |/
r

T e

SESA A
ERENEZER /U.M.CHURLY CARR-5TH
SYKESVILLE M 21784

01.23







"ty

FEPAEZRE. [V cfeh 11 nps Srsk =77
4‘4”’ 270 ) INE ' CSTEESNILE, M52 A T7TT

Ij'l’w‘} (_T ; ,.fj/'/f’! I- 'IT ’ : _{ fl T tjj
f Hs /007 7 |
SIDBEIVICU) TR CEMETRET 2./

_.IA_‘_'""

EBENEZER. U.M. CHEQ,  carie-£74
TYKESVILLE, MD 21794
0\o%




CARR-579

Ebenezer M. E. Church .
Winfield (vicinity) 1888

The church was organized in the 1820’s by a Methodist circuit rider. In 1885, a new
structure was planned. The younger members proposed eliminating the partition and allowing
men and women to sit together. The church was dedicated in the Fall of 1888. The building
is especially significant for its adoption of a pro-style temple form, which is very unusual for
Carroll County churches. It is also a very late use of the form in Maryland. The portico is
applied to what would otherwise be a very typical rectangular church building for Carroll
County.



Survey No. CARR-579

. . Magi No.
Maryland Historical Trust
State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE __yes _ no
1. Name (indicate preferred name)
historic Ebenezer M. E. Church
and/or common Ebenezer U. M. Church
2. Location
street & number 4911 Woodbine Road (MD 94) ___ not for publication
city,town Winfield _X__ vicinity of congressional district
state Maryland county Carroll
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
___ district: —__ public _X__ occupied ____ agriculture ____ museum
_X building(s) X private —___ unoccupied ____commercial ___ park
__ structure ___ both ____ work in progress __ educational ____private residence
—__ site Public Acquisition Accessible — entertainment X_ religious
___ object ___ in process X yes: restricted ____government scientific
— being considered ___ yes: unrestricted — industrial transportation
Xnot applicable no military other:

4- Owner Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

nameé fhenezer M. E. Church

street & number 41901 Woodbine Road telephone no.:

city, town Svkesville state and zip codepMp 21784

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Courthouse Annex liber
street & number 55 North Court Street folio
city, town Westminster state MD

6. Representation in Existing uistorical surveys

title

date —federal ___ state ___county __ local

;pository for survey records

city, town state




7. Description Survey No. CARR-579

Condition Check one Check one

____ excellent ___ deteriorated ____ unaitered X original site

_X_good ____ruins _X_ altered ___ _moved date of move
___ fair ____unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its

various elements as it exists today.

Summary: Ebenezer M. E. Church is located on the east side of Woodbine Road, at
4911, about %2 mile south of Liberty Road and the town of Winfield. It is a one-story,
two-bay by four-bay Greek Revival pro-style temple building with a rubble stone
foundation, 6-1 common bond brick walls, and a gable roof with asphalt shingles and
east-west running ridge. The west elevation has a portico front supported by four wood
Doric columns and entablature blocks. Above the blocks is a bracketed cornice. The
west wall has two eight-panel doors with stained glass transoms. Both the north and
south elevations have four stained glass lancet windows. Both the northwest and
southwest corners have a marble stone in the foundation that is carved "M. E. Church
1888." The interior is one large, open sanctuary that has now been greatly altered.
There is a cemetery on a triangular lot north of the church.

Ebenezer M. E. Church is located on the east side of Woodbine Road, at 4911,
about %2 mile south of Liberty Road and the town of Winfield. It is a one-story, two-bay
by four-bay Greek Revival pro-style temple building with a rubble stone foundation, 6-1
common bond brick walls, and a gable roof with asphalt shingles and east-west running
ridge.

The west elevation has a portico front supported by four wood Doric columns and
entablature blocks with three ogee mouldings on each block. Above the blocks is a
bracketed cornice and between the brackets is a scalloped moulding. The tympanum has
wood German siding and a bracketed raking cornice. In the center of the tympanum is a
wood tablet with two rows of scalloped moulding. The west wall has two eight-panel
doors with stained glass transoms. The doors have flat wood surrounds and a cornice
supported by a large bracket at each end and five smaller brackets in between. The
cornice has a row of scalloped moulding above the brackets, and a cavetto above that.

Both the north and south elevations have four stained glass lancet windows in
wood frames with a beaded interior edge. They formerly had shutters or blinds. The
bracketed cornice is carried around both elevations from the front, and both the northwest
and southwest corners have a marble stone in the foundation that is carved "M. E.
Church 1888." The windows all have the same geometric design, with a different figure
in a circle near the top of the window and a memorial tablet at the bottom. The east
elevation is covered with corrugated metal and has a later wing attached to it. It also has
returns and a bracketed raking cornice.

The interior is one large, open sanctuary that has now been greatly altered. The
east end retains its raised dais, but the altar and pulpit, which are new, have been placed



8. Significance Survey No. CARR-579

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

— prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric _ community planning ____ landscape architecture X__ religion

—1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic ____conservation — law — science

.1500-1599 _ agriculture —___economics —literature — sculpture
—1600-1699 _X architecture _ education — military ____ social/

—1700-1799 ____ art —__engineering — music humanitarian

X 1800-1899 ____ commerce — exploration/settiement ____ philosophy ___ theater

— 1900- ____ communications — industry — politics/government ____ transportation
—_ invention — other (specify)

Specific dates 1888 Builder/Architect

check: Applicable Criteria: _ A __ B XC _ D

and/or

Applicable Exception: X A B C D E F G

Level of Significance: _ national _ state X local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

Summary: The church was organized in the 1820’s by a Methodist circuit rider. In
1885, a new structure was planned. The younger members proposed eliminating the
partition and allowing men and women to sit together. The church was dedicated in the
Fall of 1888. The building is especially significant for its adoption of a pro-style temple
form, which is very unusual for Carroll County churches. It is also a very late use of the
form in Maryland. The portico is applied to what would otherwise be a very typical
rectangular church building for Carroll County.

Geographic Organization: Piedmont

Chronological/Development Period: Industrial-Urban Dominance A.D. 1870-1930
Historic Period Themes: Architecture, Religion

Resource Types: Church, Rural Vernacular

Most of the early records related to Ebenezer M. E. Church were apparently
destroyed in a fire. The history now available was collected by the church in 1959. The
church was organized in the 1820’s by a Methodist circuit rider, and the name taken from
Ist Samuel 7:12. The first church, a log structure, was located on Bradock Road, just
west of Skidmore Road, near Winfield, and had a partition down the middle to separate
men and women. After it burned in 1848, the church accepted the current tract of land
from Reuben Conaway and built a barrack type of structure in the center of the present
cemetery. According to the church history, a new one-story frame structure 24 feet by
40 feet was built in 1861, but according to Scharf, in his History of Western Maryland,
the frame church was built in 1854. It had three rows of pews and was also divided by a
partition to separate men and women. Most of the time the church used lay preachers,
though occasionally a circuit rider visited the congregation.

In 1885, a new structure was planned. The younger members proposed
eliminating the partition and allowing men and women to sit together. The elder
members opposed this, and the construction of the new edifice was delayed as a result.



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. CARR-579

Scharf, History of Western Maryland, p. 894
Dudley, Rev. Hoyt A., Jr. "The Ebenezer Methodist Church Winfield, Maryland"

typescript, in church possession, 1959

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property

Quadrangle name __Winfield Quadrangle scale __1:24000
UTM References do NOT complete UTM references
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Verbal boundary description and justification

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county code
state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/title Kenneth M. Short, Historic Planner

organization Carroll County Planning Department date  June 18, 1993
street & number 225 North Center Street telephone (410) 857-2145
city or town Westminster state MD

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Shaw House
21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 269-2438
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MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST Survey No. CARR-579
STATE HISTORIC SITES INVENTORY FORM

Description (continued) Section 7 Page 2

on the west end, and the new benches are oriented to face west. The floor is carpeted
and there is a drop ceiling. The center of the north and south elevations have a buttress.
The baseboards have an ogee moulding at the top. All four walls have a chairrail
moulding, and below that a moulding applied to flat wood to create the appearance of
panels. The window surrounds have a bead on the inside of the front face, and are
pedimented at the top, with an ogee moulding on the top edge. The north and south
elevations have a picture rail moulding at the level of the top of the windows. The
moulding has an astragal at the top and a channel below.

Historic photographs of the interior show that the east wall had a pair of fluted
half-columns (probably trompe 1’oeil) flanking a large painted scene. The alter was set in
front of this scene on a low dais, with an altar rail of turned balusters enclosing three
sides of the dais. There was a bracketed comice around at least three sides of the room,
and it was probably also trompe I’oeil. The picture rail, chairrail, and faux panels did
not exist. The window and door surrounds were decoratively cut on the outer edge to
create a profile similar to a baluster. The transoms had Queen Anne muntins, and there
were double doors of apparently three panels each, with a small lying panel in the center.
The windows were square headed, but the top sash had lanceolate glazing of three lights,
with wood infill in the spandrels. The lower sash was two lights. The sanctuary was
heated by at least one (probably two) wood stoves, and the buttresses doubled as
chimneys. The pews had a round arched panel on each end and end rails with a slight
curve. They were arranged in three rows, with two aisles. The end rows held shorter
benches than the center row. The pulpit appears to have been set on the south wall, near
the east end, and was a rather elaborate wood structure with panels separated by applied
half-columns. In the southeast corner was a group of Windsor chairs. The church was
painted a two-tone scheme, darker at the bottom third and lighter at the top two-thirds.

There is a cemetery on a triangular lot north of the church. The stones are set in
parallel rows facing west toward the road, with the older stones (primarily from the
1870’s and later) closer to the road. The cemetery is still being used for burials.

KS/Th:6-4-93: CARR579 .des



MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST Survey No. CARR-579

STATE HISTORIC SITES INVENTORY FORM

Significance (continued) Section 8 Page 2

John Stem, a wealthy and prominent local leader offered $500 for building the church,
and favored an open sanctuary. This swung people against the partition and in 1888 the
congregation pledged $3000 for the building and voted against the partition. The church
was dedicated in the Fall of 1888 and incorporated in August 1892. The building is
especially significant for its adoption of a pro-style temple form, which is very unusual
for Carroll County churches. It is also a very late use of the form in Maryland. The
portico is applied to what would otherwise be a very typical rectangular church building
for Carroll County, found in all parts of the County from as early as the second quarter
of the nineteenth century to the early twentieth century, and built by all denominations.

The church hall was built next to the church in 1937 at a cost of $1075, and in
1958 the two buildings were connected.

KS/1h:6-4-93:CARRS79.sig
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